
2018 CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

September 5, 2018 
 

 

Roll Call 
Present: Vince DeLeonardis, Chairman 

 Deputy Commissioner Michael Sharp, Vice Chairman 
 Deputy Commissioner John Daley, Secretary – via video conference 

 Commissioner Michele Madigan 
 Commissioner Peter Martin 
 Deputy Commissioner Maire Masterson  
 Commissioner Skip Scirocco 

 Deputy Commissioner Joseph O’Neill 
 Deputy Mayor Lisa Shields 
 
Absent:  Commissioner John Franck  
  
Recording of Proceeding 
 
The proceedings of this meeting were recorded for the benefit of the public and the secretary. 
Because the minutes are not a verbatim record of the proceeding, the minutes are not a word-
for-word transcript. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairman DeLeonardis called the meeting to order at 11:00 AM. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Chairman DeLeonardis opened the floor up for public comment.  

 
Donna Buckley, Saratoga Springs asked if the County Civil Service could represent the School 
District while the City retains the Civil Service as it is.  She was advised that this action would 
be independent of the Charter and would be voted on by the public.  There would need to be a lot 
of coordination and consent to be put on the ballot.  Commissioner Madigan said it is an 
interesting idea.  Chairman DeLeonardis said that this would be a good query for the Attorney 
General to comment on regarding HR, the secretary and Civil Service.  This conversation should 
continue but not at the table.   
 
End of public comment. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
No minutes  
 
Discussion Items 
 
Chairman DeLeonardis advised that this document was reviewed by Hodgson Russ and some 
additional, non-substantive, changes were suggested.  Chairman DeLeonardis began by 
reviewing the 7 member document (attached).  In section 1.3 a typo was corrected.  Section 2.5 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
2018 Charter Review Commission 
Minutes –8/31/18 
 

added “The” at the beginning of the sentence. 2.7 “no 2 members shall also be members…” the 
word “also” was removed.  2.9-2.10 the symbol § was substituted for the word “section” for 
continuity throughout the document.  Text changes for Council members were made in the 
opening and concluding paragraphs to be the same for each Council member with the exception 
of calling out the specific functions which are shown in bold.  Chairman DeLeonardis then read 
the opening and closing paragraphs for the Mayor.  In 4.2.3 “financial policy” was changed to 
“Finance Policy”; 4.2.4 substituted the symbol for the word “section”; 5.4.1 Rec Commission the 
last sentence states that the Commissioner of DPW makes the appointment on advice and 
consent of Council.  In 7.3.1 - substituted the symbol for the word “section”.   In Title 11 – the 
IT Director was changed to read IT Administrator for consistency of the document.  
Commissioner Martin asked if this title change needed to be approved by Civil Service.  
Chairman DeLeonardis said it was not necessary.  Commissioner Madigan said that discussions 
will be needed with PERB to remove the position from the Union.  Deputy Shields asked if this 
was interoperated as a function.  Chairman DeLeonardis said that it was a title because it is a 
department.  Commissioner Madigan asked if budget language needed to be included like it is for 
Rec Department?  Chairman DeLeonardis said no, Rec is called out because it is under DPW but 
both HR and IT are independent and left to policy to call out.  Commissioner Martin asked if the 
appointment would be made on advice and consent of Council and does it supersede State Law?  
Chairman DeLeonardis said that yes it is made on advice and consent but no state law 
requirement.   
 
Chairman DeLeonardis reviewed the changes made by Hodgson Russ (attached).  They are non-
substantive but are more for consistency and to provide clarity.  Deputy Sharp asked if there was 
a question regarding Title 10?  A discussion ensued but all were ok with it as it is.  Chairman 
DeLeonardis said that all the suggested changes to this document will be incorporated into both 
documents backing out the 2 At-Large members; renumbering sections and voting only on real 
changes.  There will be 4 documents submitted to the City Clerk – Proposed 5 Members clean 
draft; Proposed 5 Members redline; Proposed 7 Members clean draft; and Proposed 7 Members 
redline.   Commissioner Madigan said that she needs to review the added language to the budget 
section 14.1 to be sure what budget is being referred to.  A discussion ensued about the budget 
process and the names associated with each stage before and including adoption.  Commissioner 
Scirocco asked if the duties of the At-Large members would be defined in the Charter.  
Chairman DeLeonardis said that the At-Large members would have all the legislative duties and 
obligations of the City Council but they would have no administrative duties. 
 
Commissioner Madigan asked for a 5 minute recess at 11:34 AM to continue the discussion 
regarding the budget. 
 
The meeting resumed at 11:40 AM.  Chairman DeLeonardis advised that Commissioner Martin 
made the suggestion that Title 8, which would address the At-Large members, be included in the 
5 member document as Title 8 (Reserved).  That would eliminate any need for renumbering and 
avoid confusion when discussing sections in both documents.  Dick Weisz agreed that it would 
be less confusing.  Chairman DeLeonardis again said that the vote needs to happen today so we 
can meet the filing deadline.  Deputy Shields asked if the documents should contain a defined 
process for the transition?  Chairman DeLeonardis said that the 2001 Charter did not identify a 
team and the Council will make the changes for each department.  Deputy Sharp clarified the 
naming of the budget as it is referred to in the documents.  Remove “Comprehensive” in 14.7 to 
14.10.  The discussion continued about the process and wording to use for clarity.  Chairman 
DeLeonardis will add “proposed” to 14.6 and remove “Comprehensive” from 14.7 & 14.10.  so 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
2018 Charter Review Commission 
Minutes –8/31/18 
 

with that and the suggestion of Title 8 that Commissioner Martin suggested, Chairman 
DeLeonardis made the following motion: 
Move that the Commission approve the 5 member and 7 member drafts as discussed with the 
amendments articulated.  Second:  Commissioner Peter Martin.  Approved: All.  Motion passed. 
 
The next item for discussion is the Report which outlines what was changed and why and what 
was not changed and why.  Commissioner Martin said that the last sentence “The remainder of 
the Title is unchanged as the Commission determined that no efficiencies or organizational 
improvements could be achieved by further amendments.” doesn’t reflect the standard that was 
applied.  All decisions and votes were in context of the mandate from the Mayor to stay within 
the form of government.  The document going to the public should be shorter.  Chairman 
DeLeonardis said that the original draft that he did, did not include this language.  Bob 
McLaughlin suggested this to detail what was changed and why and what was not changed and 
why.  Dick Weisz said that this is the language that the Court sited but if it is not the 
Commission’s finding it should be removed.  A discussion ensued and it was determined that the 
sentence would be removed and a clarifying sentence would be added at the end.  Dick Weisz 
said that putting it at the end is ok.  Commissioner Madigan suggested that some wording should 
be added to advise that Civil Service will be looked at in the future.  Chairman DeLeonardis said 
he would add language in Title II for more detailed review.  He was advised that the two ballot 
questions should be submitted separately.  Dick Weisz said that the language for ballot 1 was 
taken right from the statute and question 2 addresses the amendment of the 2 members and is 
dependent on question 1 being approved.  Deputy Shields asked if the document should call out 
where the functions previously existed and suggested that the new titles should show where they 
came from.  Chairman DeLeonardis advised that this is not the public educational document.  It 
is to be filed with the City Clerk.  Dick Weisz said that this document reflects what was voted 
on.  Other pieces can contain more details.  Commissioner Martin said that Title 14 show 
(Mayor) and should be done for other departments.  Deputy Shields said her point was the 
organizational reflection for efficiencies.  Chairman Scirocco asked if the names showing on the 
end of the documents could be updated to reflect his name as – Anthony J. “Skip” Scirocco.  
Everyone agreed that the names indicated should be formal.  The document will be amended to 
show formal names.  The discussion concluded and Chairman DeLeonardis made a motion:  To 
approve the Report to be submitted to the Clerk.  Second:  Commissioner Michele Madigan.  
Approved:  All.  Motion passed. 
 
Dick Weisz reviewed the filing requirements:  File with the City Clerk this afternoon if possible, 
or tomorrow morning:  the 2 versions of the Charter with both clean and underlined copies, final 
Commission Report and 2 Ballot questions (each on a sheet of paper).  The Commission may 
want to issue a statement with more details but it is up to you.  You may want to make a formal 
Press Release to highlight changes.  Chairman DeLeonardis said the intent was to provide a press 
release to announce that it is filed and where to find it for review.  Should a Public Notice be 
done as well?  Dick Weisz said a notice is a good idea and may want to add where to view.  
Press release couldn’t hurt.  Commissioner Madigan said to walk a copy over to the Library.  
Putting binders together for the polling places and other distribution methods were discussed.  
Dick Weisz suggested calling the County Clerk to see how they want to receive the information.  
Commissioner Martin asked about a financial report.  Dick Weisz said that since no significant 
financial impact could be identified that information could be included in the Report.  Chairman 
DeLeonardis asked if everyone was comfortable with him making the addition to the Report.  All 
were.   
 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
2018 Charter Review Commission 
Minutes –8/31/18 
 

Chairman DeLeonardis opened the floor public comment. 
  
There was no public comment. 
 
Next meeting on 9/12/18 @ 3:00 PM 
Chairman DeLeonardis adjourned the meeting at 12:33 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Trish Bush. 
 
 





































































































































































































































































2018 SARATOGA SPRINGS CITY CHARTER 

 

PROPOSED BALLOT QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO VOTERS 

Question 1:   Shall the Saratoga Springs City Charter be amended as proposed by the 2018 
Charter Review Commission? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2018 SARATOGA SPRINGS CITY CHARTER 



 

PROPOSED BALLOT QUESTIONS TO BE SUBMITTED TO VOTERS 

Question 2:   Shall the Saratoga Springs City Charter be further amended to provide for two (2) 
additional City Council members whose authority shall be legislative only? 

 


